
 
 
A Meeting of an INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
DECISION will be held in SF2 - Civic Offices, Shute End, 
Wokingham RG40 1BN on MONDAY 8 AUGUST 2022 AT 
1.15 PM 
 

 
Susan Parsonage 
Chief Executive 
Published on 29 July 2022 
 
Note: Non-Committee Members and members of the public  
are welcome to attend the meeting or participate in the  
meeting virtually, in line with the Council’s Constitution. If  
you wish to participate either in person or virtually via  
Microsoft Teams please contact Democratic Services. The  
meeting can also be watched live using the following link: 
https://youtu.be/W0GWTmnA3kA  
 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/W0GWTmnA3kA


 

 

 
 

Our Vision 
 

A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business 
 

 
Enriching Lives 

 Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full 
potential, regardless of their background.  

 Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to 
complement an active lifestyle.  

 Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which 
people feel part of.  

 Support growth in our local economy and help to build business. 

Safe, Strong, Communities 

 Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people. 

 Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.  

 Nurture communities and help them to thrive. 

 Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.  

A Clean and Green Borough 

 Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.  

 Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas. 

 Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling. 

 Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.  

Right Homes, Right Places 

 Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.  

 Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to 
grow.  

 Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.  

 Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.  

Keeping the Borough Moving 

 Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.  

 Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.  

 Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure. 

 Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible 
public transport with good network links.  

Changing the Way We Work for You 

 Be relentlessly customer focussed. 

 Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around 
you.  

 Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately 
as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.  

 Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and 
customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.  

 



 

 

For consideration by 
 
Paul Fishwick, Executive member for Active Travel, Transport, and Highways 
Imogen Shepherd-DuBey, Executive Member for Finance 
 
Officers Present 
Rebecca Brooks, Community Transport Manager 
Callum Wernham, Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist 
 
 

IMD NO. WARD SUBJECT 

    
 Arborfield; 

Barkham; 
Evendons; 
Finchampstead 
North; 
Finchampstead 
South; Shinfield 
North; Shinfield 
South; 
Swallowfield 

LOCAL BUS SERVICE SOM4 
 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
The Individual Executive Members may exclude 
the press and public in order to discuss the Part 
2 sheets of the above agenda item and to do so 
it must pass a resolution in the following terms: 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act (as amended) as appropriate. 

5 - 12 

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Callum Wernham Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist 
Email callum.wernham@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



This page is intentionally left blank



INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REFERENCE IMD: 2022/09 

 
TITLE Local Bus Service SoM4 
  
DECISION TO BE MADE BY Executive Member for Active Travel, Transport 

and Highways - Paul Fishwick and the Executive 
Member for Finance – Imogen Shepherd-DuBey 

  
DATE, 
MEETING ROOM and TIME 

8 August 2022 
SF2 at 1:15pm 

  
WARD Arborfield; Barkham; Evendons; Finchampstead 

North; Finchampstead South; Shinfield North; 
Shinfield South; Swallowfield; 

  
DIRECTOR / KEY OFFICER Director, Place and Growth - Steve Moore 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT (Inc Strategic Outcomes) 
 
The purpose of this report is to gain approval to modify the term of local bus service 
contracts procured as part of Contract WBC100 and modify the service pattern. The 
modifications will allow local bus services to continue to operate in Spencers Wood, 
Shinfield, Riseley, Swallowfield, Arborfield, Finchampstead and Barkham areas. These 
local bus services provide a critical service to residents in the borough who may 
otherwise be socially isolated and unable to access key services including medical 
services, food shops, places of education and employment. 
 
The decision is being treated as urgent as the bus contracts have come to their natural 
end. The contract term must be modified to allow the Council to continue to meet its 
statutory duty under the 1985 Transport Act. It was not possible to retender the 
contracts before now due to the impact of COVID on the industry, rapid rising fuel and 
driver costs, uncertainty around central government funding and the need to review the 
local network considering the above pressures. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the Individual Executive Member for Active Travel, Transport and Highways and 
the Executive Member for Finance give approval to modify the contract term of contracts 
tendered under WBC100.  
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
Wokingham Borough Council has a statutory duty to provide local bus services under 
the 1985 Transport Act, where in the view of the Council the bus services are required 
and would not otherwise be provided by the commercial market. A contract modification 
is proposed under procurement Regulation 72 (1)(c). The routes affected are Leopard 3, 
Leopard 8, Leopard 9 and Tiger 7. 
 
Contracts tendered under WBC100 have come to their natural end and the term must 
be modified if the services are to continue. Preparations were initially made to retender 
the services, however the impact of COVID on passenger numbers and revenue, driver 

Page 5

Agenda Item IMD9



shortages, certainty over central government funding and now cost inflation driven by 
the cost of fuel and cost of living crisis have all impacted on the stability of the market 
and the Council’s ability to retender. A review of all bus routes in the borough is required 
and will then need to be approved before the retender can take place. 
 

 

Page 6



Background 
 
Contract WBC100 had an initial contract term of 5 years with the option to extend for 
two further periods (2+1). The full permitted contract term has now come to its natural 
end. 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to provide local bus services where in the view of the 
Council the bus services are required and would not otherwise be provided by the 
commercial market.  
 
The bus services affected are: 

- Leopard 3: Reading – Shinfield – Arborfield – Finchampstead – Barkham - 
Wokingham 

- Leopard 8: Reading – Shinfield – Thames Valley Science Park – Fullbrook 
Avenue 

- Leopard 9: Reading – Whitely Wood – Spencers Wood – Fullbrook Avenue 
- Tiger 7: Reading – Three Mile Cross – Spencers Wood – Swallowfield - Riseley 

 
A recent review of current operating costs and revenues indicate that the above 
services could not be provided commercially at the current time. 
 
It is the Councils current view that the above local bus services are required as they 
enable vulnerable residents to access medical services, attend places of education and 
employment, and provide access to retail and amenities. Without the above services 
there would be a particular risk of social exclusion for communities in Spencers Wood, 
Swallowfield, Riseley, Finchampstead and Arborfield. 
 
The pattern of service will be modified as permitted under the “Future Route 
Enhancement” and “Registration of Routes & Timetable” clauses of the General 
Specification.  
 
Consideration was given to retendering during 2020 and again in 2021, however the 
Covid pandemic had a significant impact on the services both in terms of passenger 
journeys and revenue. There was and continues to be uncertainty around government 
funding, which has been provided to mitigate the impacts of Covid and ensure services 
continue to operate. The industry has been acutely affected by a driver shortage, 
increasing driver wages. Inflationary costs, particularly relating to the cost of fuel and 
cost of living have further increased operational costs.  
 
In May 2022 the Department for Transport (DfT) required all Local Transport Authorities 
to undertake a Local Bus Service Network Review. Following the completion of the 
Network Review, local bus services will be retendered. In the meantime, to ensure that 
these critical services continue, and that the Council continues to meet the requirements 
of the Transport Act 1985, it is proposed to modify the contract term.  
 
The originally awarded contract had a total ascertainable value of £976,000 over an 8-
year term.  
 

The costs associated with modifying the contract term are set out in Part 2. 
 
Procurement Regulation 72.(1)(C) permits the modification of contracts during their 
term where all of the following conditions are fulfilled:— 

Page 7



 
(i) the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances which diligent 
contracting authority could not have foreseen; 
 
(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract; 
 
(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original contract or 
framework agreement. 
 
 
Business Case (including Analysis of Issues) 
 
Option 1: Withdraw local bus services  

 Approximately 1,226,256 passenger journeys1 per annum are currently made on 
the Leopard and Tiger services, many of which would no longer be possible. 

 There would be a significant impact on residents in terms of access to health 
care, employment, and education, especially from Spencers Wood, Swallowfield, 
Riseley, Finchampstead and Arborfield.  

 The Council would not meet the statutory duty of the 1985 Transport Act. 

 It would be detrimental to the climate emergency, air quality, residents’ health & 
wellbeing, and congestion on local roads.  
 

Option 2: Retender Local Bus Service 

 There is insufficient time to retender the service before the contracts come to 
their natural end or by October 2022 when government funding ceases.  

 A gap in service would result if a new supplier won a re-tender exercise, as a 70-
day registration process post award, along with any appropriate mobilisation & 
TUPE process would be required.  

 A gap in service would result in the same impacts as listed under Option 1. 
 

Option 3: Modify the Contract Term  

 Modifying the contract term would allow the services to continue whilst a retender 
takes place. Allowing local bus services to continue would mitigate the impacts 
identified under Options 1 and 2. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19 
crisis.  It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the 
vulnerable and on its highest priorities. 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

£241,466 (S106) Yes Revenue 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

   

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

   

                                            
1 based on Feb/March 2022 data 

Page 8



 
 

Cross-Council Implications  

(Local bus services have a significant impact on cross-council services. Local bus 
services allowing children who are eligible for travel assistance to get to school and 
vulnerable adults can travel to social activities. Alternative provisions would need to be 
put in place to enable the Council to fulfill its statutory duties for adults and children. The 
concessionary bus pass allows elderly and disabled residents to travel on local bus 
service, without these services there is a risk of social isolation. For residents travelling 
for medical appointments increased pressure for travel assistance would fall on 
community transport services and the NHS. 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty 

An equalities assessment has been completed. 

 

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

Director – Resources and Assets To be updated at the meeting 

Monitoring Officer To be updated at the meeting 

Leader of the Council To be updated at the meeting 

 

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2 

Financial Modelling has taken place, this information is commercially sensitive. The 
information is subject to a NDA. 

 

List of Background Papers 

N/A 

 

Contact  Rebecca Brooks Service  Place 

Telephone No  Tel: 0118 974 6000 Email  
rebecca.brooks@wokingham.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	IMD9 Local Bus Service SoM4
	Enc. 1 for Local Bus Service SoM4


